
 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
February 2, 2023 

Page 1 of 6 

   

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

February 2, 2023 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chair Coless called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Chair Coless provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following members were in attendance: Chair Coless, Vice-Chair Darby, and Supervisors 

Sorgini, MacFarland and Neights.  

b. Also in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Mike Mrozinski, Community 

Development Director; Tim Woodrow, Township Engineer; Michael Jackson, Chief of Police, 

and Ash Jeyapratap, Student Representative. 

 

Chairman’s Comments  

Chair Coless announced that agenda items 4b, Consideration of Resolution 2023-11 approving Audubon 

Square V Land Development Plan, and 4e, consideration of appointment to Township 

boards/commission/councils, were being tabled. 

 

Chair Coless read a Black History Month proclamation, a copy of which is attached to the minutes. 

 

1) Presentations 

A. 2022 Community Awards – The recipients of the 2022 Community Awards were announced and 

presented with plaques for their contributions to the Lower Providence community: 

• Volunteer of the Year – Jean Akers 

• Citizens of the Year – Alicia and Sean Cadogan 

• Business of the Year – Designed Treasures / Anna May Curran and Brianna Walz 

B. Recognition of outgoing board and commission members – The following members received 

planters as a token of thanks for the service: 

• Jean Akers – Served five years on the Parks & Recreation Board 

• Ginny Kricun – Served eight years on the Planning Commission 

• George Ozorowski – Served eight years on the Parks & Recreation Board and five years 

on the Zoning Hearing Board 

C. Student representative report - Ash Jeyapratap 

 

2) Consent Agenda  

A. Supervisor Neights requested that under Old Business of the January 19, 2023 minutes, Item 

3A(d) be revised to included Brad Macy’s comments confirming that the developer would make 

the new part of the trail 10 feet in line with county standards and would look into maintaining the 

stormwater system.  

B. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 2(a) and 

2(b), including moving the meeting minutes of January 19, 2023, into the record with the 

revisions, and approving Escrow Release #3 for the Woodland Tracts in the amount of 

$42,519.95. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion.   



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
February 2, 2023 

Page 2 of 6 

   

i. There was no public comment. 

ii. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

3) Public Hearing – Comprehensive Plan 

A. Supervisor Gallagher stated that the public hearing had been advertised and that the board would 

be accepting public comment on the Comprehensive Plan. Following tonight’s hearing, the 

matter will be continued to the February 16th meeting of the Board of Supervisors for 

consideration of adoption. 

B. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to open the public hearing, seconded by Vice 

Chair Darby. 

a. The motion passed unanimously. 

C. Mr. Mentry provided an overview of the Comprehensive Plan process and the draft plan. He said 

a Steering Committee, comprised of supervisors, staff and citizens, had worked with the 

Montgomery County Planning Commission for some two years. Numerous public meetings, 

open houses and surveys sought public input which was incorporated into the plan. He said the 

vision-setting plan will serve as a guide for the Township for many years; under the 

Municipalities Planning Code the Township is required to complete an update every 10 years. He 

said the plan offers goals, recommendations and implementation guidance in many areas 

including ordinance updates, capital planning, grants, and policies. He noted that the comments 

that had been received on the draft plan from the Township’s Planning Commission and SEPTA 

could be incorporated into the final plan without any substantive changes.  

D. Each of the supervisors provided comment on the draft plan. 

a. Supervisor Sorgini noted it had been awesome to watch the process to solicit and 

incorporate public input. He thanked the citizens and staff and specifically noted the 

efforts of supervisors Coless and MacFarland to spearhead the committee in addition to 

their other responsibilities. 

b. Supervisor Neights thanked Chair Coless and Supervisor MacFarland for their superlative 

efforts in bringing in the community and incorporating public comment. He encouraged 

including the comments of the Planning Commission as it could be done without slowing 

down the process. 

c. Supervisor MacFarland said that a great deal of time and effort had gone into the plan and 

thanked the members of the Steering Committee: Tom Boward, Supervisor Coless, Eric 

Gehring, Mark Kuberski, Kristina O’Donnell, Claire Lesage, Joe Lulis, E.J. Mentry, 

Mike Mrozinski, and Sheila Smith. He recognized the administrative work done by the 

Montgomery County Planning Commission. He offered reflections on the draft including: 

i. Concern that funding sources for sidewalks and other goals had not been 

identified 

ii. Concern that the Township’s weak earned income tax base due to its low per 

capita income presents challenges with respect to increasing revenue over time 

iii. Concern that lack of additional housing needed to bring in new residents results in 

a shortfall in revenue opportunity, other than property tax 

iv. Concern that attention and priority be placed on the Township’s stormwater 

problem and its financial impact 

v. Emphasis on Eastern Ridge Pike zone improvements 

vi. Agreed that Planning Commission comments should be added and thanked the 

Commission for its submission 

d. Vice Chair Darby echoed the sentiments of the other supervisors in thanking the Steering 

Committee for their work. She said she was looking forward to implementing the plan 

and making sure the community stays involved. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
February 2, 2023 

Page 3 of 6 

   

e. Chair Coless noted that it was important to Supervisor MacFarland and herself that the 

plan be tangible. While it is less concrete than she had hoped, she said the plan provides 

the flexibility to move with the times. She commented on the theme of sidewalk 

connectivity, noting that not all responsibility falls on the Township and that developers 

can be held accountable for putting them in. She said the plan addresses economic 

development, for example, what kind of businesses does the Township want to encourage 

and where, and the housing challenge. She said that environmental impact is woven 

throughout the plan and that it sets the Township up for grant opportunities. She 

encouraged the public to view the plan which is on the website and said that community 

involvement will drive its implementation. 

f. There was no public comment. 

E. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to close the public hearing, seconded by 

Supervisor Sorgini. 

a. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

4) Old Business 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2023-09 amending Providence Greene Homeowners’ Association 

Declaration 

a. Solicitor Gallagher said the Homeowners’ Association wanted to change the provisions 

of the homeowners’ documents that relate to the community. They are required to obtain 

Township approval to do so. The changes remove five single family parcels from the 

HOA. There are no changes to the Township’s rights or responsibilities. 

b. Josh Campson, Esq., spoke on behalf of the five families. It was confirmed that the 

Township would not be taking on any additional costs with the change. Mr. Camson said 

the only change is that the five lots are not required to pay HOA fees and are not 

permitted to use the pool, tennis courts and open spaces. The affected residents are aware 

of the requirement for single-family homes to contract with J.P. Mascaro for trash. 

c. MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-09 amending 

the Providence Greene Homeowners’ Association Declaration. Supervisor Neights 

seconded the motion. 

d. There was no public comment. 

e. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2023-11 approving Audubon Square V Land Development Plan, 

Phase 2, 717 S. Trooper Road 

a. Chair Coless announced at the start of the meeting that the item was being tabled.  

 

C. Consideration of Resolution 2023-12 approving BrightView Landscaping Land Development 

Plan, Phase 1, 400 N. Park Avenue 

a. Jared Klein, Esq., representing BrightView, thanked the Board for their time as the 

proposal changed multiple times over the last year. 

b. Chair Coless acknowledged the company’s significant efforts to be good neighbors. 

Supervisor Neights said the project puts the Township on the leading edge for 

electrification and noted the aesthetic and stormwater improvements. 

c. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-12 approving 

the BrightView Landscaping Land Development Plan, seconded by Supervisor Sorgini. 

d. There was no public comment. 

e. The motion passed 5-0. 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
February 2, 2023 

Page 4 of 6 

   

D. Consideration of Resolution 2023-13 approving waiver of Subdivision and Land Development 

for Select Pizza Grill, 711 S. Trooper Road 

a. Solicitor Gallagher said the resolution pertained to the addition of pergolas on the 

property and associated modifications to the parking area. She said there are conditions in 

the resolution that require compliance with Mr. Woodrow’s review letter of Dec. 6, 2022. 

b. Supervisor MacFarland asked about the relocation of the handicapped parking. Mr. 

Mrozinski said it would stay on the Trooper Road frontage. 

c. Supervisor Neights noted that the property had previously met the requirements of the 

land development process. 

d. MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-13 approving 

waiver of Subdivision and Land Development for Select Pizza Grill, seconded by 

Supervisor MacFarland. 

e. There was no public comment. 

f. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

E. Consideration of appointment to Township boards/commission/council 

a. Chair Coless explained that the item, which is being tabled, is on the agenda as a 

placeholder should there be any appointments. 

 

5) New Business 

A. Consideration of bid award for Accessible Pedestrian System (APS) at Ridge Pike/Parklane 

Drive intersection 

a. Mr. Mentry said the Board authorized advertisement of the bid on January 3, 2023. The 

project, which is included in the 2023 budget, includes upgraded signals for the visually 

impaired. Of the five bids received, Lenni Electric Corporation was the lowest 

responsible bidder at $19,222.00. He said that $30,000 was budgeted for the project. 

b. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to award the bid for the APS system to 

Lenni Electric Corporation. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

c. There was no public comment. 

d. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

B. Consideration of 2023-14 approving PennDOT Maintenance Agreement for Crawford 

Road/Eagleville Road/Park Avenue intersection improvement project 

a. Mr. Mentry said the agreement involves the capital project that has been ongoing for a 

number of years and will soon be going out to bid. This is a required maintenance 

agreement between the Township and PennDOT specifically with regard to stormwater 

facilities that will be on the state road portion of the project. As is standard in such 

agreements, PennDOT places the responsibility for routine maintenance on the 

Township; PennDOT is responsible for inspections and condition assessments. The 

agreement was reviewed by the solicitor and Public Works Director. In answer to 

questions by Supervisors Neights and Darby, Mr. Mentry said there would be no 

additional equipment or manpower needed.  

b. Mr. Mentry also provided an update on the status of the project. The bids are scheduled to 

be opened March 16, 2023.  

c. MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-14 

approving the PennDOT maintenance agreement, seconded by Supervisor Sorgini. 

d. It was confirmed, following a question by a resident, that the project included a 

realignment, not a traffic circle. 

e. The motion passed 5-0. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
February 2, 2023 

Page 5 of 6 

   

 

C. Consideration of Resolution 2023-15 appointing representatives to the Montgomery County Tax 

Collection Committee 

a. Mr. Mentry said the resolution appoints the Finance Director as the primary voting 

delegate to the committee and the Township Manager as the alternate.  

b. MOTION: Supervisor Darby made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-15 appointing 

representatives to the Montgomery County Tax Collection Committee. Supervisor 

Neights seconded the motion.  

c. There was no public comment. 

d. The motion passed 5-0.  

 

D. Consideration of Pension Distribution – Susan Law 

a. Mr. Mentry noted the Board previously accepted the retirement of Sue Law and needed 

the approval for record-keeping purposes. The distribution had been reviewed and 

approved by the Finance Director and pension actuary. 

b. MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve the pension distribution, 

seconded by Supervisor Neights. 

c. There was no public comment. 

d. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

E. Consideration of Township Manager’s conference attendance  

a. Mr. Mentry said his attendance at the Public Employers Labor Relations Advisory 

Service (PELRAS) and Association for Pennsylvania Municipal Managers (APMM) 

conferences had been included in the 2023 budget. 

b. MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve the manager’s attendance 

at the PELRAS and APMM conferences. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

c. There was no public comment.  

d. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

F. General Discussion of Board of Supervisors 2023 Strategy and Goals 

a. Chair Coless said this was a continuation of the discussion started at the previous 

meetings and would focus on the Township complex project. There was discussion on 

how to move forward.  

b. Mr. Mentry said it was his understanding that the Board was inclined to proceed with a 

feasibility study/site plan before moving to the design-bid-build process. 

c. There was consensus to attempt to obtain a second proposal for the feasibility study in 

addition to the one received from Boyle Construction.  

 

6) Announcements/Meetings 

• Environmental Advisory Council – February 13 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Parks and Recreation Board – Feb. 21 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Planning Commission – Feb. 22 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Zoning Hearing Board – Feb. 23 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

7) Comments and Other Business 

A. Supervisor Neights read an “Eagles Week” proclamation in advance of the Philadelphia Eagles 

appearance in Super Bowl LVII, a copy of which is attached to the minutes. 

B. Supervisor Sorgini noted the Sewer Authority will meet February 13 and the Library Board will 

meet February 20, both at 7:00 p.m. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
February 2, 2023 

Page 6 of 6 

   

C. Supervisor Neights said the Planning Commission met and Mark Kuberski and Kristina 

O’Donnell were elected to continue as chair and vice chair, respectively. He said the 

Environmental Advisory Council is seeking new members and will be making recommendations 

to the Board at a meeting in the near future. 

D. Chair Coless announced that volunteers are needed for the Perkiomen Watershed’s annual 

Stream Cleanup to be held on April 15. Details can be found on the website, 

lowerprovidence.org. 

 

8) Courtesy of the Floor 

A. No public comment 

 

9) Adjournment 

A. MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Supervisor Neights seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 

 

 

Next Business Meetings:  February 16, 2023 

    March 2, 2023 

 

 

    







EAGLEVILLE 
LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

A PROCLAMATION 

EAGLES WEEK 
February 5-11, 2023 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Eagles went 14-3 during the regular season, setting 
the best record in franchise history, and routed the San Francisco 49ers to claim 
the NFC Championship; and 

WHEREAS, this resilient team, having overcome injuries and doubters, will take 
to the field on February 12 against the Kansas City Chiefs in Super Bowl LVII 
determined to claim the Lombardi Trophy. 

NOW THEREFORE, we, the members of the Board of Supervisors of Lower 
Providence Township in Eagleville, hereby proclaim February 5 to February 11, 
2023 as EAGLES WEEK and encourage the Eagleville 
community and Eagles fans everywhere to come together in 
support of our Eagles. Go Birds! 

It's a Philly Thing! 



Minutes of Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council Meeting – 

December 19, 2022 

The meeting began at 7:10 PM. Council members, Douglas White, John Zollers, and Amber Minnick were 

present. 

1.  Approval of Minutes: The minutes from the November 2022 meeting were approved 3-0, Doug 

White making the motion for approval and Amber Minnick seconding. 

2.  Special Guest Presentation:  Jean Akers from LP Parks and Rec presented the Tree Canopy Plan. Jean 

discussed past efforts made and plantings planned for 2023.  Jean will be stepping down from Parks and 

Rec this month and offered for EAC to take over the Tree Plan initiative.  Jean provided EAC with the 

Tree Plan PowerPoint presentation and EAC members present agreed to discuss this further at future 

meetings. 

3.  Old Business 

a. Update on additional board members:  There were no interested candidates present for this 

meeting. 

 b. Subcommittee reports 

  Education/Communication 

1.  Plastic Bag initiative-  EAC members to vote on purchase of digital rights to graphic 

presented at last meeting. 

2. Social Media Update-  Amber Minnick discussed that the township is still in the 

process of working on the policies for creating EAC Facebook and Instagram pages. 

3. Bird Town-  Amber Minnick provided update on progress with Bird Town 

application.  The Bird Town Committee is in search of additional members to assist 

with this effort. 

Stormwater-no updates 

Built Infastructure/Ecological Restoration- no updates 

Green Energy- 

1. Resolution Addendum- Doug White discussed the Resolution Addendum.  Bill Sabey, 

Chair for Plymouth Township, will be present at January 2023 EAC meeting to 

answer any questions about this. 

c.  Workplan Review 

1. Doug White, John Zollers, and Amber Minnick all added to the work plan review to 

include to include new initiatives such as Bird Town and Resolution Addendum. 

4.  New Business 

a. Voting Item: Purchase of digital rights to graphic and other necessary items for events (EAC branded 

tablecloth, name tags, pop up canopy)   



i.  Members voted 3-0 in favor of using EAC money towards digital rights and supplies. 

b. Voting Item: Approve dates for 2023 meetings 

 i.  Members voted 3-0 in approval of 2023 meeting dates. 

 

5.  Comments and Other Business 

 a. John Zollers discussed a possible Heritage Tree at the corner of Crawford and Egypt Rd. 

 

6.  Courtesy of the Floor 

a. Resident Julia Nakhleh discussed applying for a refund through PECO for usage of solar panels 

and possible problems with switching electric providers from PECO.  Julia also inquired about 

who cleans storm water drains in the township and who should be notified of blocked drains. 

7.  Adjournment 

 a. Doug White motioned to adjourn the meeting with Amber Minnick seconding that motion. 

 

 



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP     

PARKS & RECREATION 

December 20, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Beth Ann 

Mazza, Erin Di Paolo, Jean Akers, Michelle Brown, Stephanie Padula and Ray Lotfi. Also, in attendance:  

Jane Delaney, Director, and Karen Hegedus, Recreational Superintendent and Student Rep. Riley McDonald. 

Parmesh Sivakumar and Sameeksha Panda were absent. 

 

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of November 15, 2022. 

B)  MOTION: Erin Di Paolo made a motion to approve minutes of November 15, 2022, Ray Lotfi seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 8-0. 

 

5) Old Business  

A) Pet Photo event – Thank you to Gary Brown for volunteering as Santa. We had approximately 26 dogs show 

up to meet Santa. We also had Metropolitan Vet and Dogtopia there giving away treats and things. 

B) Tree Lighting event – Thank you to the Park Board, students, and volunteers for participating in the event. 

We had a great turn out and it was well attended. 

C) Trees were planted in Eskie Park and were installed by Colonial Gardens (4 River Birch & 3 Northern Red 

Oak) at the end of November. 

D) Santa Hotline – Thank you to the Optimist and especially Tom Bobst for once again playing a great Santa. 

We had 25 families participate. 

 

6) New Business 

A) Presentation: Jean Akers  

(1) Jean presented information (in a colorful PowerPoint presentation) about tree planting in the Township 

(follow-up from PROS plan) 

 

B) Upcoming Programs and Events 

(1) Caring and Sharing Christmas – Karen Barron heads this program, and we helped 12 families this year. 

All the families received gifts, gift cards, and food baskets for the Christmas holidays. With the help of 

our intern Rylie Cox and Jane Delaney and many other volunteers. 

(2) Senior Games Volunteers are needed for May 1st – May 5th, just keep in mind. 

 

7)   Board Comments  

A)  Presentation to Jean Akers for her long service to the Lower Providence Township Parks and Recreation 

Board. The knowledge she has given to us is beyond what we could have asked for from a Board member. 

The Board presented her with a tree, that will be planted in her honor. 

B) Beth Ann Mazza asked about event dates for 2023. Jane Delaney will forward dates as soon as they are 

confirmed. 

  

8)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless requested for Jean Aker’s presentation to the Township Manager. She is meeting with the art 

teacher at Methacton, she is interested in community project with the parks. 

  



 

 

 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Jean Akers made a motion to adjourn. Beth Ann Mazza seconded the motion. The motion passed 

8-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 

 

 

Next Meeting: January 17, 2023 

















 

 

 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT – JANUARY 2023 

 

The Township Planning Commission met on January 25 to re-organize, and to gather public 

comment during a public hearing for the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Mark Kuberski was again 

selected as chair and Kristina O’Donnell as vice-chair for the upcoming year. Interestingly, 

neither Mark nor Kristina was in attendance.  The Commission offered generally positive support 

of the Comprehensive Plan and voted to recommend forwarding to the Board of Supervisors. 

New member Samantha Grant provided a list of questions and edits, which are not substantive in 

nature and thus avoids revision before consideration and approval by the Board. These comments 

will be added to the plan as applicable. We also received similar non-substantive comments from 

SEPTA, the day after the hearing and weeks after the close of the public comment period. These 

comments will also be added as appropriate. 

 

The Planning Commission then considered the revised plans from Brightview Landscaping 

regarding their proposal to develop the site at 400 N Park for their Branch of the Future.  The 

Commission has seen this plan previously and expressed appreciation to the applicant for their 

listening to the neighbors especially concerning stormwater and aesthetic matters. Revised plans 

from PJ Land -Tidal Wave Car Wash at 2619 Ridge Pike will be considered on February 22. 

 

The Zoning Hearing Board did not meet in January and will meet on February 23rd . At that time, 

they will reorganize and hold two hearing. First is an appeal concerning the Providence Builder 

property at 3938 Ridge Pike.  It was discovered that Paramount Fence had established 

contracting business in an accessory building at the site. The applicant is seeking a variance from 

Section 143-77 concerning use and from Section 143-13 to permit more than one primary use.  

The second hearing is for Lower Providence Fire Department, 3199 Ridge, seeking to replace 

existing wall mounted letter on front of primary building with back-lit sign lettering. The 

applicant is requesting relief from Section 143-141.1. F (2) for exceeding maximum sign area 

and from Section 143-141.1.F(4) to permit illumination. 

 

Work is resuming on the commercial mixed-use portions of the Moscariello at Crosskeys 

development. The residential section is nearly complete currently.  Construction is also 

continuing at Whitetail Ridge at 2711 Woodland and at the County Facility on Eagleville Road.   

 

The Department issued a stop work order for the renovation at Buds Bar at 2797 Egypt Road. It 

was discovered that work had proceeded considerably beyond the issued permits and inspections. 

In recent days, the owner has made efforts to bring back into compliance. Across the street, 

Nudy’s is still trying to resolve differences with Audubon Water needed to install fire 

suppression. We anticipate similar issues when Bud’s Bar gets to that point. 

 

In recent weeks, Department personnel have had to require residents to leave three properties due 

to seriously unsafe conditions. T  On a 

positive note, we hear of plans for current ownership to change local management at the Friends 



 

 

of Eagle Mobile Home Park in efforts to address some of the many property maintenance and 

living standard issues in the park.      

 

We issued 71 building permits, 19 zoning permits, 5 new business licenses, 14 resale U&Os, and 

handled 50 service requests in January.  As always, please contact us with any questions or 

concerns.   

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JANUARY 2023 

Denise Walsh Page 1 of 2 2/8/2023 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Communications / Community Outreach 

 

Website and social media posts of note:  

• Share of Police Chief statement 

• Road closure -Ridge Pike 

• Business Sponsorships for Parks & Recreation events 

• 2023 Meeting Schedule 

• Community Camera Registration Program 

• Board, commission meetings 

• Good Morning LP posts 
 

Work on the winter newsletter was finalized early in the month; delivery completed mid- 

January.  

 

I coordinated the 2022 Community Award presentations and recognition of the outgoing 

board/commission members. 

 

Administration 

During the month, many task were related to the 2023 reorganization including correspondence 

to board/commission candidates, administering oath of office to appointees; revision of the 

Boards and Commission Directory; placement of ads and PSATS convention registration. 

 

Right-to-Know Office 

During the month, requests for information under the Right-to-Know Law were logged and 

processed, totaling 20 police and 9 non-police. (Copies of reports prepared as a result of an 

accident investigation conducted by the Lower Providence Township Police Department are now 

obtained through Carfax.) 

 

ON-GOING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Communications 

▪ Website posts, updates 

▪  Facebook, Twitter and Instagram posts  

▪ Press releases 

▪ Constant Contact emails 

▪ Cable Access Channel posts 

▪ Trash & recycling concerns 

 

 

 

 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JANUARY 2023 

Denise Walsh Page 2 of 2 2/8/2023 

 

Administration 

 

▪ Weekly email to Board of Supervisors with informational items 

▪ Legal advertisements as needed 

▪ Scheduling, correspondence and miscellaneous tasks as needed 

▪ Preparation and distribution of Board of Supervisors’ agenda packets 

▪ Completion of post-Board meeting tasks, including posting of meeting summary and 

approved minutes on website 

▪ Scheduling, setup of auditorium 

▪ Attendance at various meetings; preparation and distribution of meeting notes 

▪ Maintenance of Resolution, Minute and Ordinance books 
 

Meetings / Training 

 
▪ Board of Supervisors meeting – Jan 3, Jan. 19 (preparation of minutes) 

▪ Staff meetings – Jan 10, Jan. 24 

▪ Everbridge (Ready Montco) training – Jan. 19 

▪ Business Development Committee meeting – Jan. 20 

▪ Meeting with sign vendor (marqee) – Jan. 24 

▪ Mascaro monthly meeting – Jan. 26 

▪ Interviews for front desk liaison – Jan. 27 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Denise Walsh 

Community Relations Coordinator 



 

 

           LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

   

FROM: Finance Department  

   

DATE:  February 8, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: January 2023 Finance Department Monthly Report   

 

 

Audit 

• Year-end entries and closing procedures to finalize numbers for 2022. 

• Sent out Audit Confirms. 

 

Payroll 

• Reconciled benefit time for various employees. 

• Worked with Paychex regarding W- 2 issue for Uniform Employees. 

• Processed Payroll for January 13, 2023 & January 27, 2023 

 

Reports filed 

• The following reports are required to be submitted to ensure state funding is 

received on time. All were submitted before due dates. 

o PennDOT MS-965  

o DCED - CLGS-2565 Tax Information Form  

o DCED – CLGS-69 Survey of Financial Condition  

o DCED – CLGS – 19 Report of Elected and Appointed Officials  

• Filed and paid Quarterly LST and Unemployment Compensation Insurance. 

 

Miscellaneous 

• Issued 1099-NEC’s.  

• Supplied Municipal Finance Partners Inc, documentation needed for the 

2021/2022 actuarial valuation. 

• Completed fiduciary insurance renewals. 

• Met with Help Now I.T consultants regarding the Townships cyber security 

needs. 

• Investigated Minimum Municipal Obligation (MMO) allocation. The entire 2022 

MMO was deposited into the Uniform Pension Plan. Contacted CBIZ to get 

deposit corrected and accounted for correctly.  



 

 

• Reconciled 457 & 401(a) contributions with CBIZ & PCS Retirement.  

• Calculated pension amount for retiring employee. 

• Estimated available funds for the 2023 Road Program. 

• Reinvested matured Certificate of Deposit (C.D) setting up a maturity schedule 

that has (CD) maturing approximately every 30 days. 

 

Ongoing tasks  

• Cash Flow, Revenue and Expenditure, Treasurer’s and Revenue Trends reports 

completed. 

• Follow the purchasing policy for proper approval of all purchases. Review open 

Purchase Orders 

• Distribute for approval, enter, and pay invoices. 

o Follow up with vendors regarding unpaid/past due invoices. 

• Daily reconciliation of receipts for front counter, permits and LPT rec.  

• Bill developers/residents for legal/engineering, alarm violations and other fees 

due the Township. 

• Review all entries to General Ledger. 

• Reconcile all bank accounts. 

• Transfer funds to the library.  

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Fire Marshal & Emergency Management Coordinator 

January 2023 Report 

During the month of January 2023:  

• Lower Providence Fire Department responded to 21 emergency incidents within the 

Township 

• Achieved designation as a Certified Fire and Explosion Investigator through the 

National Association of Fire Investigators 

• Attained 100% recognition level as part of the State’s Participating Department 

Recognition Program – Letter Attached 

• Participated in Rapid Needs Assessment class presented by FEMA 

• Investigated two building fires 

o Upper Providence Township – Ruled undetermined 

o 925 S Trooper Road, LPRO – Ruled undetermined 

• On boarded Deputy Fire Marshal, Bill Hine 

• Met with property manager of 3770 Ridge Pike to discuss property usage 

• Participated in a webinar hosted by American Fire Alarm Association on emergency 

responder radio coverage systems 

• Participated in webinar hosted by International Code Council on lithium-ion battery 

storage systems 

• Attended Fire and Arson Investigation & Case Management for Prosecution class 

presented by Legal and Liability Risk Management Institute 

• Completed Duties and Responsibilities class through PEMA as part of the new 

certification requirements for emergency management coordinators 

• Met with representative from Metropolitan Veterinary Hospital to discuss increasing 

their oxygen storage 

• Participated in new Everbridge training presented by Montgomery County  

o Everbridge is the system used to notify residents in case of emergency 

 

Notes: All fire extinguishers for the Township have been inspected by Stop Fire. 





 

 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
MONTHLY REPORT  

January 2023 
 

Administration: 

• Daily communication with Joe Chillano, Director of Public Works, to discuss job tasks/duties for   

parks crew.   

• Attended the staff meeting. 

• Transfer monthly CCFee report. 

• Met with Mike Nester and Zach about painting the bathrooms at Eagleville and Eskie Park. 

• Met with the Park and Recreation staff to prepare for Summer Camp registrations. 

• Working on preparing for the Annual Easter Egg Hunt event with Karen Barron, Karen Hegedus 

and Rylie Cox (intern)– order supplies, prepare flier and secure volunteers. 

• Prepare and lead the Park Board Meeting.  

• I attended a monthly meeting for Montgomery County Senior Games. We will continue to meet 

as a committee monthly to prepare for the games. The Senior Games will be played May 1st -May 

5th.  

• Hosted the January District III meeting for Pennsylvania Recreation and Park Society (PRPS). 

• Attended Parks and Recreation Consortium meeting at Upper Providence Township. 

• Met with Michelle Brown, Emily Brown, and Amy Johnston Smith to discuss the new 

sponsorship letter. The Sponsorship letter was updated and sent out to all township businesses.  

• Spoke with Sue Hoffman, from Upper Providence Township, to discuss The Wall That Heels and 

asked how I can help with the event. 

• Met with E.J. to discuss the possibility of putting a Solar Charging Stations at our parks. I am in 

the process of researching and contacting a representative on the stations.  

• Capital equipment for 2023 has been ordered. I purchased a John Deere Gator, John Deere 

Woods mower and two Light Towers. Hoping for them all to be available and delivered by the 

end of March or early April. 

• Researched bands for the Concerts in the Park. I secured two bands for this summer, one in June 

and one in August. 

• Researching information on Pickleball courts for Eagleville Park. 

• Contacted Temple University’s, Justin Miller, and set up a meeting to discuss potential 

partnership with them during Summer Camp.  

• Attended a meeting at Methacton High School with E.J. and Cara to discuss a parks project and 

partnering with the Art Department. 

• Met with Kristin Maas to get all updated applications and volunteer forms. 

• The bridge at MARA is still on schedule for mid-March to receive and install it. 

• We sold 22 discounted Movie Tavern tickets in January. Movie Tavern tickets are sold for $8.50 

year -round.  

• We sold 49 discounted Regal Movie ticket. Movie tickets are sold at a discounted price of $10.00 

per ticket year- round. 

• We continue to offer Memorial Donation Program which allows residents to purchase a bench, a 

tree, or a brick in a loved one’s honor and have it placed in a special location in one of our 

beautiful parks.  

• We continue to offer our Hometown Heroes Program and have been replacing the banners 

throughout Eagleville Park as they are purchased. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

All Parks/ Facilities Maintenance: 

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on any matters that need attention over the 

winter months. 

• Trash is picked up weekly or as needed at area parks. 

• Continue to check and replenish Mutt Mitts in area parks. 

• Continue to inspect area parks daily and make repairs as needed. 

• Mike and Zach are inspecting the memorial flags and resecuring them if needed. 

• Prepare a cleaning schedule for John Simons for the Schoolhouse as we have programs running 

Monday -Friday and rentals on the weekends. 

• Met with Joe Chillano to discuss the heating at the Schoolhouse, we are having issues with it 

running. 

 

Eagleville Park: 

• Cleaned and repainted the bathrooms at Eagleville Park. 

 

Eskie Park: 

• Cleaned and repainted the bathrooms at Eskie Park. 

 

 Programs in session: 

  

• Firebirds Theatre Acting Class Session 

• Line Dancing Fusion Class 

• Shining Knights Chess Club 

 

Upcoming Programs and Trips: 

• Pottery Heart Workshop 

• Kids Pottery Class 

• Casino Trip  

• Washington Trip  

 

Daily Tasks:  

• Return calls and emails daily. 

• Respond to requests from the residents.  

• Multiple meetings with Karen Hegedus, Karen Barron, and Rylie Cox regarding winter/spring 

programs as well as ongoing programs and events. 

• Continue to participate in Zoom/ in person meetings and webinar with PRPS.  

• Update P & R web page, Facebook, Instagram, MyRec and the marquee as needed. 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Jane C. Delaney 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
Submitted By: Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 
POLICE FLEET  Jan-23 Total 

Miles Traveled 25,891 25,891 
  

 

INCIDENTS Jan-23 Total 

Police Activity (CAD) 2,106 2,106 

     

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY Jan-23 Total 

Traffic Stops 444 444 

Traffic Citations 150 150 

Non-Traffic Citations 6 6 

Criminal Arrests 39 39 

Foot and Bike Patrols 210 210 

Traffic Details 146 146 

Public Contacts (Minimum) 931 931 

Formal Personnel Complaints 1 1 

Personnel Compliments 4 4 

     

JUVENILE CONTACTS Jan-23 Total 

Juvenile Contacts 51 51 

Juveniles Petitioned 5 5 

Warnings Issued 9 9 

Citations Issued 0 0 

Referral to Other Agencies 2 2 

     

ACCIDENTS Jan-23 Total 

Total Number of Accidents 39 39 

Reportable Accidents 17 17 

Non-Reportable Accidents 22 22 

 
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
 

ALARM RESPONSES Jan-23 Total 

Total Alarms 35 35 

Security Alarms 26 26 

Fire Alarms 9 9 

   

DETECTIVE DIVISION Jan-23 Total 

Investigations 51 51 

   

SUBPOENAS FOR COURT  Jan-23 Total 

District Court 38-1-20 55 55 

Montgomery County  7 7 

All Others 0 0 

   

DUI TASK FORCE Jan-23 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 

   

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING Jan-23 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 

      

DRUG TASK FORCE Jan-23 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 10 10 

   

PA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD Jan-23 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 

The following is a list of Community Relations details for the month of January 2023:   

 

On Wednesday, January 4, Chief Jackson and Sgt. Stead met with members of the Montgomery County 

Emergency Management regarding the implementation of a tabletop exercise for the Methacton School 

District. 

 

On Thursday, January 19, Sgt. Stead attended the monthly Safe Schools meeting at the Methacton High 

School to address community and school concerns. 

 

On Friday, January 20, Sgt. Stead presented several Alcohol & The Law lessons to 8th-grade health 

classes at the Arcola Intermediate School. 

 

On Tuesday, January 24, Chief Jackson and Sgt. Stead met with members of the Montgomery County 

Emergency Management and Methacton School District regarding the implementation of a tabletop 

exercise for an active shooter incident. 

 

On Thursday, January 26, Sgt. Stead met with members of the Methacton School District regarding the 

implementation of drug and alcohol programs for high school students. 

 

On Friday, January 27, Sgt. Stead attended a Methacton School District in-service training regarding 

responses to emergency situations. 

 

 

The following is a list of notable TSU activity for the month of January 2023:   

 

A traffic study was conducted on Apple Valley Lane after a complaint was made by a resident regarding 

speeding vehicles.  It determined there was a “low-level” need for additional enforcement efforts. 

 

On Monday, January 9, a sight distance study was conducted by members of the TSU at the intersection 

of Audubon Road and Rittenhouse Road after a complaint was made by a resident. It was determined 

the sight distance was appropriate following PENNDOT standards. 

 

On Thursday, January 12, a seven (7) day traffic study was conducted on N. Grange Avenue utilizing 

the JAMAR Law Enforcement Radar Recorder.  It was done following a complaint regarding speeding 

vehicles by multiple residents.  It determined there was a “high-level” need for additional enforcement 

efforts.  New speed lines were installed for conducting routine speed details. 

 

There were two (2) traffic complaints made by residents during the month. 

 

During the month, there were one hundred twelve (112) BusPatrol violations submitted for review 
resulting in fifty-four (54) civil citations being issued to drivers. 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 

Youth Aid Panel: 

 

The police department submitted two (2) juveniles to the Montgomery County District Attorney’s 

Office Youth Aid Panel Program.   

 

Curfew: 

 

During the month, there were four (4) violations of the Township’s curfew ordinance. 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JANUARY 2023 

Below is a list of some items that the Public Works Department accomplished during the month of 

January. 

• Meet with Jane Delaney daily to review/ discuss departmental needs 

• All PA One call notifications were reviewed, field marked and responded to appropriately 

• Director reviewed road opening permits, performed inspections where required  

• The department completed various and multiple building maintenance tasks  

• Street signs were repaired/replaced 

• Meet with PW Foreman and Interim Parks Crew Leader to discuss work assignments and 

scheduling 

• Director had several meetings with staff on various topics 

• Mechanics performed routine maintenance on Township fleet and equipment 

• Director approved bills associated with the department 

• Janitor cleaned our buildings during the month  

• PW & Parks guys did trash runs twice this week in our Parks. Every Monday and Friday 

• Director returned phone calls and emails addressing residents’ concerns  

• Director worked on the monthly report 

• Storm sewer inlets were cleaned prior to any rainstorms 

• Multiple storm sewer inlet on various Twp roadways were repaired in place. Work associated 

includes cleaning out the inlet, repairing with brick, lintels and concrete. Replacing the top and 

restoration work. Lots of storm sewers to check, clean and repair for our upcoming paving 

projects 

• Traffic signals and streetlights were repaired during the month of January 

• Bids were received for the APS pedestrian system for Ridge/Parklane and Eagleville traffic 

signal 

• Parks members inspected all playground equipment during the month  

• Began sending the approved vehicles and equipment to  auction 

• Our PW staff is constantly prepping all our fleet for any winter weather events 

• After winter events all equipment is washed, greased and repaired as needed, this step is very 

important to maintain a high level of service when equipment is put to the test  

• Director reviewed Co Stars Road Salt Contract for the 2023/24 winter 

• The cubicles in the administration office were reorganized in anticipation of additional staff, 

the guys did a great job 



• Continuing to work on 2023 Rd Reconstruction Projects, held meeting with staff to discuss 

• Director completed 2021 and 2022 completion report for PennDot 

• Crews removed 6 large dead ash trees from Eagleville Park, we will need to address many more 

dead ash trees in 2023 on Twp owned property 

• Guys completed multiple tasks during the month for our Police Dept, install new electrical 

outlets, made repairs to their evidence room and laid down Vascar speed lines on roadways 

• We painted 2 offices per requests of administration staff 

• Met with a contractor and to obtain pricing for lining deteriorated storm sewer pipes 

• Parks crew members painted the restrooms at Eagleville and Eskie Parks comfort stations  

  

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Joseph R. Chillano 

      

 

 



































































































































































































































































 

{01577456;v2} 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 

RESOLUTION # 2023-16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER PROVIDENCE, 

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY, COMMONWEALTH OF 

PENNSYLVANIA, ADOPTING AND APPROVING THE  

LOWER PROVIDENCE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article III of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, 

Act 247, 53 P.S. §§ 10301-10307, municipalities are required, from time to time, to prepare, 

adopt, and update their comprehensive plan; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration, the Lower Providence Township Board of 

Supervisors, with the assistance of a citizen steering committee and the Montgomery County 

Planning Commission, has completed a comprehensive plan that will serve as a guide for future 

growth and development; and 

WHEREAS, comments received from the public at public hearings, and from the 

Montgomery County Planning Commission, adjacent municipalities, and the Methacton School 

District have been duly noted; and 

WHEREAS, comments received from the Lower Providence Township Planning 

Commission and the Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority, as set forth in 

Appendix A attached hereto, have been duly noted and shall be incorporated into the Lower 

Providence 2040 Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Township’s Planning Commission and the Township Board of 

Supervisors have reviewed and recommended the adoption of the comprehensive plan that 

addresses community objectives, existing and future land uses, infrastructure, the transportation 

network, environmental protection, and economic development; and 

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence 2040 Comprehensive Plan proposed for adoption is 

dated February of 2023 and incorporates various maps, charts, data, and text with respect to 

demographics, land uses, environmental characteristics, housing, transportation, public water and 

sewer infrastructure, open space, and community facilities as set forth therein; and 



 

{01577456;v2} 

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence 2040 Comprehensive Plan has been the subject of a 

duly advertised public hearing held by the Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors on 

February 2, 2023. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township of Lower Providence, 

County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, in accordance with and in furtherance 

of the powers granted to it, hereby does adopt the Lower Providence 2040 Comprehensive Plan, 

prepared by the Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors with the assistance of a 

citizen steering committee and the Montgomery County Planning Commission, as the official 

comprehensive plan of Lower Providence Township. 

 

RESOLVED at a duly convened meeting of the Board of Supervisors conducted on this 

_____ day of      , 2023. 

       

      LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

      

 

      ______________________________ 

      Cara Coless, Chair 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

E. J. Mentry, Secretary 

 

 

 

  



 

{01573937;V3}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE T OWNSHIP 
 

RESOLUTION FOR AMENDED PRELIMINARY 
LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-11 
 
 

WHEREAS, Audubon Land Development (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has 

submitted an application for Amended Preliminary and Final Major Land Development approval 

of Phase II of Audubon Square 5, which would: expand Building 5 from 27,760 square feet to 

144,000 square feet for use as a self-storage facility, expand Building 1 from 15,900 square feet 

(as approved via Resolution 2018-31) to 21,000 square feet for use as retail, add Building 10 

with existing 21,340 square feet to the plan, add new Building 8 (approved by Resolution 2018-

31 as a 3,856 square foot building for a restaurant use with drive through) for a 2,661 

Restaurant and a 3,739 square foot Retail Use, and add Building 9 for a 7,350 square foot 

Restaurant Use (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”) for the property at or near S. Trooper 

Road and Eisenhower Boulevard, fronting Trooper Road just South of Forge Avenue, Lower 

Providence Township, Montgomery County (hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

“Property” or “Properties”), as set forth in a 68-sheet set of plans entitled “Audubon Square 5” 

prepared by Bursich Associates, Inc., of Pottstown, Pennsylvania, dated June 13, 2018, last 

revised December 7, 2022 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plans”); and 

WHEREAS, the Plans propose to develop the Property as set forth above, along with 

grading, utilities, landscaping, lighting, stormwater management facilities, and erosion control, 

as further depicted on the Plans; and  

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has issued a review letter dated January 11, 2023 and 



 

{01573937;V3}2 
 

the Township Traffic Engineer has issued a review letter dated December 23, 2022 (collectively, 

“Engineering Review Letters”); and 

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Board of Supervisors has previously issued Preliminary 

and Final Major Land Development approval for the Property via Resolution 2018-03;  

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Planning Commission issued review comments dated 

October 26, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township (hereinafter referred 

to as “Board”) is prepared to grant conditional approval of Applicant’s Amended Preliminary 

and Final Major Land Development Application, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township this 16th day of February, 2023, that said application for Amended 

Preliminary and Final Major Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED, subject to the 

following conditions: 

1. Plans: The Board grants approval subject to the conditions described herein, to the Plans 

prepared by prepared by Bursich Associates, Inc. dated June 13, 2018 and last revised December 

7, 2022. 

2. Zoning Ordinance.  The Application is granted subject to the condition that Applicant obtain any 

and all necessary zoning relief and/or permits prior to commencing construction.   

3. Required Permits and Outside Agency Approvals.  The Applicant or its successors or 

assigns shall provide evidence of securing the following permits or approvals where 

needed: 

a. Sanitary Sewer Permits from the Lower Providence Township Sewer Authority. 



 

{01573937;V3}3 
 

b. Approved DEP Land Planning Module/Waiver. 

c. Receipt of Montgomery County Conservation District Adequacy Letter. 

d. NPDES Permit for Construction Activity. 

e. Approval of PA American Water or Audubon Water Company, as applicable. 

f. PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit and/or Montgomery County Roads & 

Bridge Highway Occupancy Permit, if required. 

g. Building permits, construction permits, road opening permits, electrical permits. 

grading permits from Lower Providence Township, as applicable. 

h. Shop drawings for all materials associated with water, sanitary sewer and/or 

storm sewer utilities shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Township 

Engineer prior to commencement of construction. 

 

4. Conditions of Amended Preliminary and Final Land Development Approval. 

Amended Preliminary and Final Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED subject 

to the following conditions: 

a. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Engineer, Woodrow & Associates, dated January 11, 2023 (or the latest revision 

thereof).    

b. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Traffic Engineer, McMahon, dated December 23, 2022 (or the latest revision 

thereof).  The Applicant shall pay a traffic impact fee of $23,514.78 

c. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the Lower Providence Planning 



 

{01573937;V3}4 
 

Commission comments letter dated October 26, 2022.  

d. Applicant shall comply with the review comments of the Lower Providence Chief 

of Police dated September 26, 2022 (or the latest revision thereof). 

e. Applicant shall comply with the review comments of the Lower Providence Fire 

Marshal dated January 13, 2023 (or the latest revision thereof).  

f. Applicant shall provide “will serve” letters or other evidence that the premises 

are to be served by public water and sewer and shall submit signed agreements 

to the Township.  

g. All outstanding Township fees associated with the review and approval of the 

foresaid plan shall be paid in full prior to the recording of the final plan. 

h. Prior to plan recording, the Applicant shall verify that there are no existing 

easements, deed restrictions or covenants that would affect the proposed 

development. 

i. Applicant agrees to submit a final plan to Lower Providence Township and the 

Lower Providence Township Engineer for review and approval prior to recording. 

This plan shall indicate compliance with all conditions set forth in this Resolution 

and all Engineer review comments including those contained in the Woodrow & 

Associates and McMahon Associates, Inc., Engineering Review Letters (or the 

latest revision thereof). 

j. Prior to recording of the final plan, the Applicant shall provide the following 

executed agreements for recording in a form acceptable to the Township 

Solicitor, each of which shall be recorded concurrently with the final record 



 

{01573937;V3}5 
 

plans: 

i. Land Development Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into a Land 

Development Agreement with the Township. 

ii. Escrow Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into an Escrow Agreement and 

shall post adequate securities in order to construct public improvements, 

as determined by the Township Engineer. 

iii. Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Agreement. Applicant shall 

enter into a Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Agreement, in a 

form acceptable to the Township Solicitor, which provides ongoing 

maintenance obligations for the Stormwater Management BMPs for the 

lot owners or Home Owners’ Association, as applicable. Facilities, areas or 

structures used as Stormwater Management BMPs shall be enumerated 

as permanent real estate appurtenances and encumbered by the 

Applicant as deed restrictions or conservation easements that run with 

the land.  The ownership and maintenance of these Stormwater 

Management BMPs shall be the responsibility of the individual Lot 

Owners and their heirs, successors or assigns.   

iv. Easement Agreements.  Applicant shall provide all required Easement 

Agreements.     

k. The Applicant shall, within ninety (90) days from the date of Final Land 

Development Approval, if requested by Applicant and approved by the Board of 

Supervisors, submit final Mylars and papers to the Township for signature and 



 

{01573937;V3}6 
 

recording at the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. There shall be one (1) 

electronic and five (5) papers submitted. Following release and recording of the 

record plan, the Applicant shall notify the Township Manager and the Township 

Solicitor in writing of the plan book, page number and date of recording by the 

Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. 

l. Applicant shall pay park and recreation fees in the amount of $197,396.84 

(calculated as $1.10/SF of Commercial, Retail and Restaurant Space, $1.77/SF of 

Office Space, and $0.76/SF of Warehouse Space).  This fee shall be paid prior to 

recording of the final plan approval.   

m. Applicant shall attend a pre-construction meeting with the Township staff and 

appropriate consultants to be held prior to commencement of work. 

n. Prior to the development of each individual lot, the applicant shall apply to 

Lower Providence Township for a building permit. This shall include the 

submission of a grading plan showing the actual building footprint and driveway 

location. 

o. Construction shall not continue past the foundation stage until the 

owner/builder has submitted certification that the first floor and garage floor 

elevations of the proposed structure conform to the plans submitted with the 

grading permit application. The certification shall be submitted to the Township 

Engineer and shall be signed and sealed by the responsible registered 

professional land surveyor licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

p. The applicant shall contact the Township Engineer to perform a final grading 



 

{01573937;V3}7 
 

inspection prior to issuance of an occupancy permit. 

q. The applicant shall submit one (1) electronic and five (5) paper final as-built plans 

to the Township for review and approval prior to the issuance of an occupancy 

permit. This plan shall include stormwater management facilities.  

r. Dead street trees or trees within 100 feet of impervious surfaces must be 

replaced by the property owner within 6 months. 

s. Prior to the issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy or Use and Occupancy 

permit, Applicant, at is sole cost and expense, shall complete all steps necessary 

to dedicate any facilities proposed for dedication to the Township as set forth on 

the Record Plans, including but not limited to dedication of any rights-of-way.   

t. All administrative, legal and engineering expenses owed to the Township for plan 

review and/or planning services shall be paid in full by the Applicant prior to 

release of signed record plans. 

u. The Applicant shall comply in all respects with the rules, regulations and 

requirements of all governmental agencies and/or bodies having jurisdiction with 

respect to this Application and shall assume all costs, expense and responsibility 

in connection therewith, without any liability whatsoever on the part of the 

Township. 

5. Waivers.  

a. Applicant is requesting, and the Board has approved, the following waivers of the 

Lower Providence Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance 

(hereinafter “SALDO” or “Ordinance”): 



 

{01573937;V3}8 
 

i. Section 123-31 – Rights of Way, requiring that Applicant provide an 

Ultimate Right of Way on Rittenhouse Road.  Applicant is requesting a 

waiver of this section of the ordinance with regard to Rittenhouse Road 

only, as future land development in the area will provide the required 

Right of Way at that time.  Because of the nature of the Project and the 

future foreseeable development in the area, the Board of Supervisors has 

GRANTED this waiver from the Ordinance. 

ii. Section 123-32 – Curbs and Storm Sewers, requiring the provision of 

curbs and storm sewers along Rittenhouse Road and Egypt Road.  

Applicant is requesting a waiver of this section of the ordinance with 

respect to Rittenhouse and Egypt Roads only, as future land development 

in the area will provide the appropriate curbs and storm sewers.  Because 

of the nature of the Project and the future foreseeable development in 

the area, the Board of Supervisors has GRANTED this waiver from the 

Ordinance. 

iii. Section §123-33, which requires sidewalks to be constructed along 

Rittenhouse and Egypt Road.  Applicant is requesting a waiver of this 

section of the ordinance with respect to Rittenhouse and Egypt Roads 

only, as future land development in the area will provide the appropriate 

sidewalks.  Because of the nature of the Project and the future 

foreseeable development in the area, the Board of Supervisors has 

GRANTED this waiver from the Ordinance. 



 

{01573937;V3}9 
 

iv. Section §123-36.(2)(d), which requires Access Drive C to be at least five 

(5) feet from the property line.  Applicant has requested a waiver of this 

section to allow Access Drive C (which will be extended to Eisenhower 

Road) to be closer than 5’ from the property line at its intersection with 

Norris Hall Road.  Based upon the existing conditions at the Property and 

the location of the proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED this 

waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

v. Section 123-37.C – Parking, which requires parking lot islands to be 

landscaped.  Applicant is seeking a waiver of this section of the Ordinance 

with respect to the parking lots north of Buildings 5, 6 and 7, as those 

areas are within the Transco Gas Pipeline easement, and plantings are 

not allowed.  Applicant has provided required trees south of the 

easement along the edge of the easement.  Because of the location of the 

easement and Applicant’s provision of additional trees elsewhere, the 

Board has GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance.   

vi. Section 123-37.L(2)(a) – Planting Strip, requiring a planting strip between 

Buildings 8 and 9.  Applicant is requesting this waiver from the Ordinance 

because the area is too narrow to add a landscape median without losing 

a row of parking spaces which are needed for the businesses.  Due to the 

scope of the Project and the need for parking, the Board of Supervisors 

has GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

vii. Section 123-37.M(2)(b) – Driveway Width, requiring Access Drive D to be 



 

{01573937;V3}10 
 

28 feet wide.  Applicant is requesting a waiver of this section of the 

Ordinance to allow Access Drive D to be 24 feet wide to match the 

existing width of this driveway.  Based upon the existing conditions at the 

Property and the location of the proposed improvements, the Board has 

GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

viii. Section 123-143 – Land Use Design Manual, Section 1.1.4 – Trails, 

requiring a 10 foot trail width.  Applicant is requesting a waiver of this 

section of the Ordinance to construct the relocated trail along Access 

Drive C to match the previously constructed trail width of 8 feet.  At the 

public meeting held on January 19, 2022, the Applicant amended its 

request to the following:  An 8 foot wide asphalt trail exists today along 

Road C, and a portion of Road C will be relocated in order to connect into 

Eisenhower Avenue within the industrial park as depicted on the Plans.  

Applicant is requesting a waiver to reconstruct the existing 8 foot wide 

trail on the relocated portion of Road C as an 8 foot wide trail, with the 

understanding that any new trail constructed in later phases will be built 

to the 10 foot width as required. Based upon the existing conditions at 

the Property and the location of the proposed improvements, the Board 

has GRANTED this amended partial waiver from this section of the 

Ordinance. 

ix. Section 129-19.C(3) – Minimum Pipe Size.  The applicant has requested a 

waiver to allow for a minimum of two 15” diameter pipes in lieu of the 



 

{01573937;V3}11 
 

required single 18” pipe. Based upon the existing conditions at the 

Property and the location of the proposed improvements, the Board has 

GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

x. Section 129-19.C(6) – Flow Velocity.  The applicant has requested a 

waiver to allow for a less than 1.0% slope on terminal storm sewer runs. 

Based upon the existing conditions at the Property and the location of the 

proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED this waiver from this 

section of the Ordinance. 

xi. Section 123-19.C.(12) — Depth of Stormwater Pipes.  The applicant has 

requested a waiver to allow for less than 18” minimum cover over all 

storm sewer pipes. Based upon the existing conditions at the Property 

and the location of the proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED 

this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

xii. Section 123-19.C.(19) — Freeboard.  The applicant has requested a 

waiver to allow for less than a minimum of one foot of freeboard. Based 

upon the existing conditions at the Property and the location of the 

proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED this waiver from this 

section of the Ordinance. 

xiii. Sections 129-16G.(4)(a) and 129-19.G.(5)(b) – Slopes.  The applicant has 

requested this waiver permit the use of 3 to 1 slopes in lieu of 4 to 1 

slopes. Based upon the existing conditions at the Property and the 

location of the proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED this 



 

{01573937;V3}12 
 

waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

xiv. The waivers previously granted via Resolutions 2016-52, 2018-31 and 

2019-17 are affirmed, except to the extent they are modified by the 

terms of this Resolution or the Amended Preliminary and Final Plans.  

b. The waiver set forth herein are subject to the following conditions of approval:  

i. Applicant shall ensure that Norris Hall Road will be extended to Access 

Road C in Phase 2 and to Egypt Road by 2024.   

ii. The revised plan includes sit-down restaurants, rather than drive-thru 

restaurants other than the drive-thru approved for Building 8 via 

Resolution 2018-31.  

iii. A post-construction traffic study shall be completed for the intersection 

of Avenue D and Forge Avenue within three (3) months of the issuance of 

final Use and Occupancy certificates of all buildings, and Applicant shall 

comply with all recommendations contained therein.   

iv. All other conditions of the approval set forth in Resolution 2018-31 

remain in full force and effect unless modified herein.  

  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township 

that this preliminary plan approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of the conditions 

contained herein by the Applicant and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a copy of this 

Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the Township 

within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Applicant does not accept 



 

{01573937;V3}13 
 

these conditions and approvals conditioned upon his or her acceptance are hereby revoked, 

and the aforementioned Applicant's plan is considered to be denied for the reasons set forth 

above. 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 16th day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By :   

E.J. Mentry, Secretary       Cara Coless, Chair



 

{01573937;V3}14 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 
Audubon Land Development, the Applicant and record owner of located at or near S. Trooper 
Road and Eisenhower Boulevard, fronting Trooper Road just South of Forge Avenue, Lower 
Providence Township, Montgomery County, does hereby acknowledge and accept the 
Amended Preliminary and Final Major Land Development Plan Approval issued by the Board of 
Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions contained herein as 
recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  Audubon Land Development   
          
 
 
              
              
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 





















 

{01579505;v1} 

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER PROVIDENCE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE, CHAPTER 143 – “ZONING,” ARTICLE XX – “NON-CONFORMING 

USES,” SECTION 145 – “LAND,” SUBSECTION 3 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 

I, E.J. MENTRY, BEING DULY SWORN ACCORDING TO LAW, DEPOSE AND 
SAY THAT I AM THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER IN LOWER PROVIDENCE 

TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA AND THAT ATTACHED HERETO IS 

A TRUE AND COMPLETE CORRECT COPY OF ORDINANCE NO. _____. 
 

 
 

______________________________________________________ 

E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 
_____________, 2023 

 

 

ENACTED: ___________ 
  



{01579505;v1} 

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER PROVIDENCE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE, CHAPTER 143 – “ZONING,” ARTICLE XX – “NON-CONFORMING 

USES,” SECTION 145 – “LAND,” SUBSECTION 3 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of LOWER PROVIDENCE Township is 
duly empowered by the Second Class Township Code, et seq., to enact certain 

regulations relating to the public health, safety welfare of the residents of 
LOWER PROVIDENCE Township; 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of LOWER PROVIDENCE Township has 
adopted an ordinance, known as the Zoning Ordinance of the Township of 
LOWER PROVIDENCE, as amended, in accordance with the provisions of the 

Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, 53 P.S. § 10101, et seq., which is 
intended to provide for the orderly development and redevelopment of LOWER 

PROVIDENCE Township; 
 
WHEREAS, the Second Class Township Code and Pennsylvania Municipalities 

Planning Code, supra, authorize the Board of Supervisors to make, amend and 
adopt amendments to the Zoning Ordinance of the Township of LOWER 

PROVIDENCE, as amended, that are consistent with the Constitution and laws 
of the Commonwealth that it deems necessary for the proper management and 
control of the Township and the best interests of its residents;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of LOWER PROVIDENCE Township have 

determined that the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of 
LOWER PROVIDENCE Township would be best served by amending Chapter 
143 – “Zoning,” at Article XX – “Non-Conforming Uses,” to modify the title of 

Article XX, and to amend such Article at Section 145 – “Land,” Subsection 3.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the 
LOWER PROVIDENCE Township Board of Supervisors that the Township’s 
Code is amended as follows: 

 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 143 – “Zoning,” is amended at Article XX – 

“Nonconforming Uses,” to amend the title of Article XX to the 
following: “Nonconforming Uses, Structures and Lots.”   

 



{01579505;v1} 

Article XX is further amended at Section 145 – “Land,” 
Subsection 3, to read as follows, with the stricken text 

indicating the removed portions of the code and the 
underlined text indicating the added portions of the code:  

 
“As of or subsequent to January 19, 2020 (the date of adoption of 

this provision), where two or more adjacent lots, one or more of which is 

nonconforming based on lot size, are concurrently owned by the same 
owner, these adjacent lots shall be merged to minimize the 
nonconformity. The term "same owner" as used in this subsection 

includes, in addition to a single person or entity, multiple persons with 
familial relationships and multiple parties with common ownership, 

business, and/or financial interests. There shall be a rebuttable 
presumption that corporations, partnerships, or other for-profit or 
nonprofit entities which are organized, owned or controlled by one or 

more of the same individuals, entities or organizations, that such 
corporation, partnership or other for-profit or nonprofit entity is or was 

organized or used for the purpose of avoiding of having adjacent lots 
being considered to be owned by the "same owner."  Such lots are 
therefore not are not recognized as separate owners for the purposes of 

this subsection.  This presumption may be rebutted with credible 
evidence that the corporation, partnership, or other for-profit or 
nonprofit entity was not created for the exclusive or primary purpose of 

avoiding compliance with this Section. ”     
 

 
SECTION 2.    Repeal and Ratification. 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith or in conflict with 
any of the specific terms enacted hereby, to the extent of said inconsistencies 
or conflicts, are hereby specifically repealed.  Any other terms and provisions of 

the Township’s Code unaffected by this Ordinance are hereby reaffirmed and 
ratified. 

 
 
SECTION 3.     Severability. 

 
Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance 

be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of the 
Ordinance shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and 
affect, and for this reason the provisions of this Ordinance shall be severable. 

 
 
 

 
 



{01579505;v1} 

 
SECTION 4.     Effective Date. 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective 5 days after enactment. 

 
 
 

ORDAINED AND ENACTED this _______ day of __________________ 2023, by the 
Board of Supervisors of the Township of LOWER PROVIDENCE. 
 

 
        TOWNSHIP OF LOWER  

PROVIDENCE, 
        BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

 
 

        ____________________________________ 
       
        Cara Coless, Chair 
 
Attested by: 
 

 
 

____________________________________ 
E.J. Mentry 
Township Manager & Secretary 



 

{01579473;v1} 

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER PROVIDENCE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 676 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE, CHAPTER 138 – “VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,” AT ARTICLE I – 

“GENERAL REGULATIONS,” SECTION 3 – “TEMPORARY AND EMGERNCY 
REGULATIONS,” SUBSECTION 5 – “EXPERIMENTAL REGULATIONS,” AND 
ARTICLE III – “PARKING REGULATIONS,” SECTION 23 – “PARKING 

PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES”  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 

I, E.J. MENTRY, BEING DULY SWORN ACCORDING TO LAW, DEPOSE AND 
SAY THAT I AM THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER IN LOWER PROVIDENCE 

TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA AND THAT ATTACHED HERETO IS 

A TRUE AND COMPLETE CORRECT COPY OF ORDINANCE NO. _____. 
 

 
 

______________________________________________________ 

E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 
_____________, 2023 

 

 

ENACTED: ___________ 
  



 

{01579473;v1} 

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER PROVIDENCE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 676 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE, CHAPTER 138 – “VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,” AT ARTICLE I – 

“GENERAL REGULATIONS,” SECTION 3 – “TEMPORARY AND EMGERNCY 
REGULATIONS,” SUBSECTION 5 – “EXPERIMENTAL REGULATIONS,” AND 
ARTICLE III – “PARKING REGULATIONS,” SECTION 23 – “PARKING 

PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES”  
 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of LOWER PROVIDENCE Township is duly 
empowered by the Second Class Township Code, et seq., to enact certain 

regulations relating to the public health, safety welfare of the residents of LOWER 
PROVIDENCE Township; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of LOWER PROVIDENCE Township has 
adopted an ordinance establishing regulations related to vehicles and traffic, 

which, inter alia, establishes procedures related to temporary and emergency 
regulations and establishes parking restrictions throughout LOWER 
PROVIDENCE Township; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of LOWER PROVIDENCE Township have 

determined that the health, safety and welfare of the residents of LOWER 
PROVIDENCE Township would be best served by amending the Code of 
Ordinances at Chapter 138 – “Vehicles and Traffic,” at Article I – “General 

Regulations,” Section 3 – “Temporary and Emergency Regulations,” subsection 
5 – “Experimental Regulations,” to allow the Chief of Police to establish 
temporary and/or emergency regulations and Article III – “Parking Regulations,” 

Section 23 – “Parking Prohibited at All Times,” to prohibit parking at all times on 
both sides of Van Buren Avenue between Adams Avenue and Jefferson Avenue. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the LOWER 
PROVIDENCE Township Board of Supervisors that the Township’s Code is 

amended as follows: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

{01579473;v1} 

SECTION 1. Amendment to Chapter 138 – “Vehicles and Traffic,” Article I 
– General Regulations, Section 3 – “Temporary and Emergency 

Regulations,” Subsection 5 – “Experimental Regulations,” 
which is amended as follows, with the stricken text indicating 

the deleted portions of the code and the underlined text 
indicating the added portions of the code: 

 

“A.  The Board of Supervisors Chief of Police may, from time to time, 
designate places upon and along the highways in the Township where, for a 
period of not more than 90 days, specific traffic and/or parking regulations, 

prohibitions and restrictions shall be in force and effect and shall designate such 
locations by proper signs and markings. Such regulations, prohibitions and 

restrictions shall be effective just as if they had been specified in this chapter. 
No person shall operate or park a vehicle or tractor in violation of any such 
regulation, prohibition or restriction, and no person shall move, remove, destroy 

or deface any sign or marking erected, posted or made by authority of this 
section. 

B.  The purpose of this section is to allow for the test and experimental 
determination of the feasibility and desirability of permanent changes in the 
ordinances of the Township relative to traffic and parking.” 

 
SECTION 2. Amendment to Chapter 138 – “Vehicles and Traffic,” Article III 

– “Parking Regulations,” at Section 23 – “Parking Prohibited at 

All Times,” to add the following restriction: 
 

 
Name of Highway  Side   Location 
 

Van Buren Avenue   Both   between Adams Avenue and  
Jefferson Avenue 

 

SECTION 3.    Repeal and Ratification. 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith or in conflict with 
any of the specific terms enacted hereby, to the extent of said inconsistencies or 
conflicts, are hereby specifically repealed.  Any other terms and provisions of the 

Township’s Code unaffected by this Ordinance are hereby reaffirmed and 
ratified. 

 
 
SECTION 4.     Severability. 

 
Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of the 

Ordinance shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and affect, 
and for this reason the provisions of this Ordinance shall be severable. 



 

{01579473;v1} 

 
 

SECTION 4.     Effective Date. 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective 5 days after enactment. 
 
 

 
ORDAINED AND ENACTED this _______ day of __________________ 2023, by the 
Board of Supervisors of the Township of LOWER PROVIDENCE. 

 
 

        TOWNSHIP OF LOWER  
PROVIDENCE, 

        BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

 
        ____________________________________ 
        Cara Coless, Chair 
Attested by: 
 

 
 
____________________________________ 

E.J. Mentry 
Township Manager & Secretary 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

 

FROM: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

 

SUBJECT: 2/16/23 BOS Meeting – Agenda Item 5.f. – LPFD ZHB Fee Waiver 

 

DATE:  February 8, 2023 

 

 

For your consideration at the upcoming February 16, 2023 Board of Supervisors meeting is a 

request from the Lower Providence Fire Department (LPFD) to waive the Zoning Hearing Board 

(ZHB) application fee for application #Z-23-02. The LPFD, located at 3199 Ridge Pike, has 

submitted an application for a variance from Zoning Ordinance section 143-141.1.F(1) 

pertaining to sign area and illumination. They are proposing to replace the existing wall mounted 

letters on the front of the primary building with slightly smaller back-lit lettering.  

 

The application fee for non-residential ZHB applications is $1,700.00. The LPFD has requested a 

waiver of the fee for this application, which is a decision entirely within the Board of 

Supervisors’ discretion.  

 



 

 

           LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:   Members of the Board of Supervisors; E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

   

FROM:  Rich Lafiata  

   

DATE:   February 8, 2023 

 

SUBJECT:  American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Transfer 

 

 

At the February 16, 2023, Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board will be presented 

with Resolution 2023-17 which authorizes Township staff to transfer American Rescue 

Plan Act (ARPA) funds. All transfers in Resolution 2023-17 are included in the 2023 

Budget. To comply with the ARPA reporting requirements, the resolution gives staff 

permission to transfer these funds on an “as needed” basis as expenses are incurred. 

These transfers will be reported to the Board of Supervisors as they occur in the monthly 

finance reports. Below you will find the items approved for purchase with ARPA funds 

included 2023 Budget.   
 

Transfer To:  Reason  Amount  

General Fund (01) Legal Fees (Ordinance Update)   $   75,000.00  

Library Fund (04) Library Contribution (HVAC System)  $   11,000.00  

Library Fund (04) Library Contribution (Technology Upgrades)  $     9,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) Public Works Vehicles (Authorized in 2022)  $ 361,980.00  

Capital Fund (30) Large Dump Truck / Plow / Salt Spreader  $ 255,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) Replace Marquee  $   56,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) Drone  $     8,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) Water Buffalo  $   10,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) Vehicle Charging Station  $   15,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) Floodgate  $   24,000.00  

Capital Fund (30) H.R. / Accounting Software  $   50,000.00  

Park & Rec Capital Fund (33) Gator - Utility Vehicles  $   19,922.00  

Park & Rec Capital Fund (33) 2 Light Towers  $   32,000.00  

Park & Rec Capital Fund (33) John Deere Woods Mower  $   10,000.00  

Park & Rec Capital Fund (33) Barn Roof  $   30,000.00  

Stormwater Fund (42) Fee Implementation  $ 250,000.00  

Stormwater Fund (42) CMP Pipe Lining  $ 100,000.00  

 



 

 

           LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 
 

Lower Providence Township 

Montgomery County, Pennsylvania 
Resolution No. 2023-- 17 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNHIP BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF UNENCUMBERED MONEYS 

FROM ONE TOWNSHIP ACCOUNT TO ANOTHER 

 

WHEREAS, Lower Providence Township is an organized Township of the Second Class, 

existing and operating in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors may by resolution transfer unencumbered moneys from 

one township account to another, pursuant to Section 3202 of Second Township Code: 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED by the Lower Providence Township Board of 

Supervisors, as follows: 

 

1. The Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the transfer of up to $20,000 from the 

American Rescue Plan Act Fund to the Library Fund as needed per the 2023 Budget. 

 

2. The Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the transfer of up to $75,000 from the 

American Rescue Plan Act Fund to the General Fund as needed per the 2023 Budget. 

 

3. The Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the transfer of up to $779,980 from the 

American Rescue Plan Act Fund to the Capital Fund as needed per the 2023 Budget. 

 

4. The Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the transfer of up to $91,922 from the 

American Rescue Plan Act Fund to the Capital Fund as needed per the 2023 Budget. 

 

5. The Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the transfer of up to $350,000 from 

American Rescue Plan Act Fund to the Stormwater Fund as needed per the 2023 

Budget. 

 

RESOLVED and APPROVED, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of 

Supervisors conducted on this 16h day of February 2023. 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________                                         _________________________ 

E.J. Mentry, Township Manager                                                     Cara Coless, Chair  


	2a Minutes Draft BOS 2023-02-16
	1
	Black History Month 2023
	Eagles Week proclamation
	Minutes 

	Eagles Week proclamation

	2a Minutes EAC Minutes-Dec. 2022
	2a Minutes PR 2022-12-20
	2a Minutes SA 2022-12-12
	2b Community Development Monthly Report
	2b Community Relations Monthly Report
	2b Finance Monthly Report
	2b Fire Marshal Monthly Report
	1
	Fire Marshall Participating Department 100 Percent Letter Pa SFA 1.31.2023

	2b Parks and Recreation Monthly Report
	2b Police Monthly Report
	Police

	2b Public Works Monthly Report
	2c1 Bill Pay List
	2c2 Treasurers Reports 2.16.23
	2c3 Escrow Release 109 River Road
	3 Resolution re Adoption of Comp Plan (01577456-2xC305A)
	4a DRAFT Approval Resolution - Audubon Square 5 (01573937-3xC305A)
	5b Road Reconstruction Bid - Chillano memo
	5c MARC request
	5c PARA request
	5d Authorization advertise-DRAFT Zoning update - adjacent lots (01579505xC305A)
	5e Authorizatio to advertise - DRAFT Ordinance - Vehicles and Traffic (01579473xC305A)
	5f  LPFD ZHB fee waiver request
	5g ARPA Cover Memo
	5g ARPA Resolution 2023-17



